' * Company Registration Number: 07421140 (Engtand & Wales) .~ = -

) JOHN TAYLOR MAT )

E (A company I|m|ted by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

COMPANIES HOUSE J



© JOHN' TAYLOR MAT

o (A company limited by guarantee)

- CONTENTS .-

Reference and admmlstratwe detalls

Trustees report

Govemance statement -

Statement on regularlty, propnety and compllance
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities )
Independent auditor's report on the ﬁnancial staternents

Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity

Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure a'ccount

" Balance sheet )
Statement of cash flows *

Notes to the financial statements

Pagei ; _'

122
- 3-20-

21-26
27
28

29 - 31

32-33

34 - 35
36 - 37
38

39-72



'JOHN TAYLOR MAT , A L
C(A company Ilmlted by‘guarantee) ‘ . o Lol v ST . g
~*." REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS. - ~
- Members . - . -. S Treanor(Chair) (resigned 17 October 2018y .~ - * . -. j
. R PR o Hopkins (appomted Chalr 30 June 2020) : ST
oo el e T GMoss LR TR e Ty
. - -~ Church of England Central Educatlon Trust - e T

" A Stainer (resngned 30 June 2020)
J Jessel (appomted 30 June 2020)

. Trustees ,'f G Mass, (Chair)
: ~ - . THopkins
~ BRichardson

A Grandfield MBE
D Beaty
AlLee
A Stainer (appointed 16 December 2019)
M Donoghue; (Accountmg Ofﬁcer)

Combany registered'
number _ 07421140

Company name " John Taylor MAT

. Principal and registered John Taylor Free School
office Branston Road
Tatenhill
Burton on Trent
Staffordshire
DE13 8SA

Company secretary B Mahoney

Page 1



JOHN TAYLOR MAT

(A company limited by guarantee) g S S .

»-'REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS (CONTINUED)

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

: "Senlor management
- team ’

Independent auditor

Bankers .

Solicitors

:'":MDonoghue JTMAT CEO oL T S
- K Cochrane, Head of School John Taylor ngh School . T
M Mincher; Head of School Kingsmead School : L oL
“L Farmer, Co-Head of Thomas'Russéll Infant's Schodl -

S Burton, Co-Head of Thomas Russell Infant's School .

: '4 -8 Draper, Headteacher of Yoxall St-Peter's C of E Prlmary School ’
‘R Cruise, Headteacher of Rykneld Primary School (appointed 1 September 2019) -
-D Adams, Headteacher of Shobnall-Primary School (appointed 1 September 2019)

M Baxter, Headteacher of Mosley Academy- .

A Goodson, Headteacher of Winshill Village Primary and Nursery School

B Mahoney, Chief Operating Officer, JTMAT

S Plant, Head of School, John Taylor Free School

C Gethin, Executive Headteacher of All Saints C of E and Needwood C of E Primary
Schools

S Rowe, Headteacher of Walton on Trent C of E Primary and Nursery School
L Mansell, Co-Head of Church Gresley Infant and Nursery School

(joined 1 September 2019)

J Cripps, Co-Head of Church Gresley Infant and Nursery School

(joined 1 September 2019)

| McArthur, Headteacher of Paulet High School (joined 1 February 2020)

Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants

-Statutory Auditor

Park View House
58 The Ropewalk
Nottingham

NG1 5DW

Lloyds TSB
High Street
Burton on Trent
Staffordshire
DE13 9LT

Anthony Collins Solicitors LLP
134 Edmund Street
Birmingham

B3 2ES

Page 2



. | . JOHN TAYLOR MAT

(A company llmlted by guarantee) e

TRUSTEES‘ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

. The Members and Drrectors present their annual report together wath the f nancral statements and aud’tors

’report of the charitable company for the. year ended 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purposes of— P -}

’ 3both a trustees report and a dlrectors report under company Iaw

- - Durlng 2019/20 the trust operated fourteen academles (twe(ve in’ 2018/19) for puplls aged 2 to 19 servmg t

catchment areas-in Barton under Needwood, Bufton Upon Trent Yoxall and Hednesford (Staffordshlre) and
: Walton on Trent and Church Gresley (Derbyshrre) - .

Achlevements of John Taylor Multi Academy Trust dunng 201 9/20:

e. The growth of the Trust through the mcorporatlon of Church Gresley Infant and Nursery School (September
- 2019) and Paulet High School (February 2020).
"o The expansion of the Trust's core team to include a dedlcated part-time HR Manager and an Estate’'s
Manager, adding to our capacity and capability in providing support to our schools.
e Successful first year of Staffordshire Research School based at John Taylor High School, as it extends its
- footprint of activity and its influence.

* s The growth of our collaborative networks and our Teachrng and Learmng Repository, even dunng Iockdown

restrictions.
e Provision of the highest quality education throughout enhanced Covid 19 restrlctlons - on srte for key
worker/vulnerable children and remote learning for many.

Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee (registration number 07421140) and an exempt charity. The
Charitable Company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the.
. Academy Trust. John Taylor Multi Academy Trust was formed on 1 June 2015 and has adopted the above
registration number with revised memorandum and articles of association

The Trustees of John Taylor MAT are also Directors for the Charltable Company for the purpose of company
law. The Charitable Company is known as John Taylar MAT (JTMAT). -

Details of the Trustees whe served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

During the year under review 6 Trustee Board meetings were held plus one extraordinary meeting (to discuss
Covid 19 school Risk Assessments) and an Annual General meeting. The training and induction provided for
new Directors will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary, induction will provide training on
charity and educational legal and financial matters. All Directors are provided with copies of relevant policies,
procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role.

b. Members' Ilabllrty

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the

event of it being wound Up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such -

amount as may be requrred not exceedlng £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to.be
" a member.
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) ‘TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

_Structure govemance and management (contlnued) L S » L

e Durectors mdemnmes

The Academy Trust has opted |nto the Department for Educanons rlsk protectuon arrangement (RPA) an

" -alternative to.insurancé where UK government funds cover losses that arise.. This schéme protects Trustees-and

officers from claims: arising from negligent. acts, ‘errors or omissions occurring whilst on-academy business, and -~

provides unlimited cover. It is not possible to quantlfy the Trustees and officers |ndemn|ty element from the
overall cost of the RPA scheme .

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Directors of the Trust are appointed by existing Members in accordance with the Trust’s Articles of Association.
Chairs of each Local Govermning Body and its Committees are annually elected to' their roles at the first
committee meeting of the academic year in each academy's Local Governing Body (LGB). Directors are
appointed because of the range of skills and.expertise they can bring to heip realise JTMAT's vision and values
for the Trust, enhance the effective strategic leadership and management of the Trust, and effectively represent
stakeholder interest within the Trust. . Two directors shall be appointed to the Board from the LGBs of its
academies. In order to-ensure opportunity is shared across all JTMAT schools, the tenure of LGB academy
directors will be a maximum of four years.

e. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for each new Director will depend on their existing experience. The Trust
purchases support that provides for individual-and collective training through an annual programme of training
which is reviewed each year to reflect any changes in practice and legislation. The Trust, as a matter of course,
wili annually revisit training needs of existing directors and discuss in their induction process any needs
pertaining to new Directors. This practice is repllcated for governors servmg on the Local Governing Bodies of
academies within the Trust.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) o
FOR THE YEAR ENDED k)| AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (contmued) - T }" h T s

The Drrectors and Key Management Personnel are responsuble for semng general pollcy, adoptlng a strateglc

" plan and budget ‘monitoring academies by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of

the-Trust and its"academies capltal expenditure and. senior staff appomtments They are also bound by duties”
and responsibilities as set out in charity law and the duties of a director as set out in company law. The Chief
Executive Officer is accountable for the overall financial viability and sustainability of the Trust and for the. .

- development of relatlonshlps with key internal and external stakeholders for the benefit of its pupils and the wider -
-communities. As the Accounting Officer for JTMAT, the Chief Executive Officer has personal responsibility for

ensuring value for money, regularity and propriety. Each Local Governing Body has established a Managing and -
Organising Committee whose role is to improve, monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of
systems, procedures and structures of the Academy and the deployment of resources required to ensure them.

These Committees meet half termly and have responsibility for a number of related areas.

The CEO meets with the key management personnel of thé Trust (listed on p.1) as an Executive Group 6 times
per year. Senior Leadership Teams comprising Heads of School, Deputy and Assistant Heads and Directors of -
Business (or their schools' equivalents) lead Trust academies at an executive level implementing the policies
ratified by the Governors of the LGB and reporting back to them. As a group, the Senior Leadership Team is
responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff through
appointment panels, which always contain a Governor. Some spending cantrol is devolved to members of staff
within leadership responsibilities that lie below senior level (e.g. curriculum or phase leaders), with limits above
this being countersigned by the Head of School, a Deputy/Assistant or the Business/Finance Manager, in line
with the approved Scheme of Delegation for that Academy.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The rules for determining the pay and remuneration of JTMAT key management and senior personnel are set
out in the Trust Pay Policy which follows closely the stipulations embodied in the School Teachers' Pay and
Conditions (STPCD) and Green Book documents. The remuneration of the CEO is discussed, reviewed annually
and set by the MAT Board. The Trustees have established pay ranges for each individual school within the MAT
based on the total unit score calculation and remuneration for key management personnel does not exceed the
maximum permissible within each school group size.
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*~ . TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED): R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020  * ="

Structure, 'gove_rn’ahee and management (coﬁ_ﬁ:ﬁgé'e)ﬁz.' _
h. Trade uhioh'feiciiity" tiiﬁe '
T Relevant union off cuals

Number of employees who were relevant union- offmals durlng the year'..' P } o 6 .
-Full tlme equwalent employee number - . ’ - . - 6

" Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time . o o I ‘Number of
' ' employees

0% _ o 4
-1%-50% . A . ) . 2

- 51%-99% " . : : : : -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facﬂlty time £
Total cost of facility time 832
Total pay bill : 21,505,211
Percentage-of total pay bill spent on facility time . . . 0.00387 %

Paid trade union activities

T|me spent on pald trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facnlnty time - %
hours

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

As a multi academy trust, John Taylor MAT has no structural or commercial affiliation to any other organisations.
All pecuniary interests for staff and directors are recorded, and reviewed annually. “Pecuniary interests” is a
standing item on every MAT Board and LGB meeting.
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o TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) L
VFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (contmued) - LT

' ] Engagement wrth employees (lncludlng dlsabled persons)

- John Taylor Mulh Academy Trust recognlses the |mportance of employee engagement as a means of aldmg'
* recruitment, securlng employee retention and productwnty‘ and as a way to ensure wellberng It-seeks to engage
its’ employees via a number of strategles R . .

e An annual staff survey regardmg workload, workplace relatronshlps traanmg and support and other features
that enable us to review and refine our provision.

- e Staff representation (teaching and suppért) . on all schools’ ‘Local Governing Bodies to enable direct

’ engagement in the decision-making process and the setting of strategic direction for schools.

e A regular and engaging social media presence, with open access for all employees to follow events, news
and developments within JTMAT and our partnerships.

» Engagement with trade unions and professional associations via paid facilities time and local forums.

" o A standardised performance management system which ensures all employees have access. to support,

‘professional development and career advancement opportunities.

The Academy Trust considers aII applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
individuals concerned. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that
employment with the Trust continues. The Trust's policy is to provide training, career development and
opportunities for promotion, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other employees. Policy and its -
implementation is reviewed annually by Directors and its implementation by governors at each academy’s LGB.

. During employment the Academy Trust seeks to work with employees, taking into account their personal
circumstances, to ensure appropriate training, development and advancement opportunities are available
to enable them to reach their full potential
Volunteers' policy
Health & safety policy

In accordance with the Academy Trust's equal opportunities policy, the Academy Trust has long established fair
“employment practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabled staff.

Full details of these policies are available from the Academy Trust's offices.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)  ~ . - |
FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 ~ = . "/

.;Structure governance and management (conlmued) = o ::' e L RS

'k Engagement wnth supphers, customers and others m a busmess relatlonshlp W|th the Academy Trust

i JTMAT recognlses ‘that it has a duty to act ina professmnal and ethlcal manner W|th all wnth whom we engage
As a charitable company, and a pUbllC sector body we are acutely aware that we have multlple stakeholders
’ These |nclude : . . .

-e  Children in our schools

" o " The parents and families of children i |n our schools

s * The Trust's employees

¢ The wider communities within which our schools operate

e The Department for Education and its agencies (ESFA, Ofsted)

e Other government departments to whom the electorate and the taxpayer are accountable
The Members of the Trust ’ '

e Commercial and non-commercial partners and suppliers,

The Trust's Communications Policy, underpinned by the National Standards for Teachers, the National
Standards for Headteachers, the Nolan Principles for Public Life and statute, set out the standards and media
through which we should engage with all stakeholders. Should the Trust, or an employee within it, exceed or fall
short of these standards, JTMAT's complaints and compliments policy is available for stakeholders to express
satisfaction or seek redress. This Policy can be viewed on the Trust's website.

Objectives and activities

a. Objects and aims

To' provide an excellent broad and balanced curriculum for all learners in MAT academies that ensures each’

“individual achieves stretching personal goals and fulfils their potential. The principal object and activity of the
charitable company is the operation of John Taylor MAT to advance for the public benefit education in the United
Kingdom, . in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing; maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

In accordance with the articles of association the charitable company has adopted a "Scheme of Government”

. approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Government specifies, amongst other things,
the basis for admitting students to its academies, the catchment areas from which the students are drawn, and
that the curriculum should coamply with the substance of the national curriculum.
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" JOHN TAYLOR MAT , ,
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. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2050

Objectlves and actlvmes (contmued) S o _f: SR "'_:ﬂ_f

The maln objectwes of the Trust dunng the year ended 31 August 2020 are summansed below

BCRE Chlldren are well prepared for the" next stage in- thelr Ilves through expenencmg the' best: I’earning' o
. opportuhities through exceptional teachmg and support and access to hlgh quallty resources and provnsmn o
. in"and béyond the classroom. .
»  Children achieve more, and make better progress by attendmg a JTMAT academy than would otherwnse be .
) expected We add value. .
e Our academies are full, and always oversubscnbed as‘aresult of their populanty reputation and success.’
e Our academies are staffed with high performing professmnals exhlbltmg passuon and taklng pride in thelr
work, in a context of effective support and challenge: .
.o Accommodation and premises are safe, well maintained, and with facilities that are constantly improving.
 Infrastructure is both effective and efficient, underpinned by sound financial management practices whereby
value for money is always given due regard. '
« - Management systems are coherent and cohesive, and staffed by colleagues who are innovative, adaptable,
" and capable of absorbing new initiatives.
.« QOur academies, and the Multi Academy Trust, are held in the highest regard by others within and beyond the
education sector, and our work and its impact is validated by external accreditation and inspection.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust's main strategy is enshrined in its mission statement which is that ‘we believe in the power of
education to improve-lives — and the world’. The keys-to our success are:

Our commitment to ensure learning is at the heart of all we do: Keeping "the main thing, the main thing” —
. prioritising our peaple, time, energy and funding to the improvement of the educational experience — both formal
and informal — we provide:

A passion for excellence: Only comparing ourselves with the. best. When finding it, seeking to match and then
surpass it.

Restlessness and curiosity: Looking. for opportunity to be involved and to learn from new experiences.

Courage to innovate: Leading change — in teaching and learning, curriculum development, organisational
structures. '

Tenacity and resilience: Holding to our mission in times of turbulence, and remaining resolute until we achieve
what we set out to do. .

Collegiality: listening to others, sharing with others, leaming from others.

In line with our Equality Policy the Trust is committed to ensuring equality ‘of opportunity for all who learn and
work here. . .
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) e
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Objectlves and acttvntles (contmued) A e s -

':cPubllcbeneft ‘ LT

) The Dlrectors have complled W|th the duty in Sectron 17 of the Chantles “Act 2011 to have due regard to pubhc:'_

benefit- guidance published by the. Charity Commissionin exercrsrng their powers or duties. In ‘particular, the
Directors consider how planned activities will contribute to the aims-and objectives they have set. The Trust has ~
provided a fuIIy comprehensive education to all .pupils in its’care. It fully complies with all statutory gurdance and

" seeks to support uts wider educatlonal objectives vra a strong commumty role.

d. Equ.ality statemenit
The Academy Trust seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010.

a) As part of its accommodation strategy the Trust updates its access audit as required.

b) The Trust has, in each Academy, -an appointed SEND Co ordinator, who provides information, advice and
arranges support where necessary for students with disabilities.

c) There is a list of specialist equipment held by each Academy which the Trust can make available for use by

" pupils and a range of assistive technology is available in each Special Educational Needs Department.

d) The policy for the admittance of all pupils is described in the Trust's Admissions Policy. Appeals against a
decision not to offer a place are dealt with under the appeals procedure outlined within the admissions policy.

e) The Trust has made a significant investment in the appointment of specialist teachers to support pupils with
learning difficulties and/or disabilities. There is a continuing programme of staff development in each
academy to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate support for puplls who have learning
difficulties and/or disabilities.

f) Specialist programmes are described in Academy prospectuses, and achievements are recorded and
published in the standard format.

g) We inform pupils and parents, at the point of transfer to Academies within the MAT, of the Academy's
pastoral system and identified staff e.g. Head of Year, to whom they can go to if they require. support or
assistance of any kind.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

a. Key performance indicators

Academies within the Trust continue to perform strongly or are improving in a range of key performance

indicators. Academic achievement is clearly very closely aligned to our-strategic objectives as articulated on

pages 8 and 9 - particularly regarding children’s preparedness for the next stages of their lives (our first
objective) and the: most demonstrable way in which we can indicate that our Trust adds value (the second
objective). .

As a result of Cov'id 19 restrictions, no public examinations (secondary phase) or national tests (primary phase).

‘were sat by children and young people in the summer of 2020. it is therefore unhelpful and problematic to

attempt to report attributed outcomes for learners in a comparatlve manner or one which articulates our schools’
and leavers’ performance : . .o

Internal assessment data will-be used by the Trust's School Improvement Team to target areas for development
across-our schools.
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Strateglc report(contlnued) : u S e —

Fmancualrewew N . e P T VP

Ta Reserves pollcy B

‘"‘ The appropnate Ievel of reserves will be determlned by the JTMAT Audlt Commnttee in Ime wnh its Reserves
Policy and will be subject to annual approval by the Trust Board (currently up to 12% of total GAG income). The

Trust aims to malntaln an adequate level of uncommltted reserves to: -

.'. provide a worklng balance fo cushion the |mpact of uneven cash ﬂows -and avoid’ necessary short term
borrowing; -

e provide a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events, emergenmes and large shortfalls in
budgets;

e plan for potential maijor items of expenduture

The Groups current level of free reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restrlcted
pension funds) is £6,045,380 (2019 - £4,293,839) which is higher than the stated level. Two High Schools who
are contributing to the high balance have significant capital development plans in place to reduce the level of
their reserves during the next 3 years. '

The Trust regularly monitors and reviews the level of reserves in the light of the changing funding and financial
climate and other risks such as the potential cash impact on its pension scheme liabifity. This will be reviewed
further followmg the release of the 2020 tnennlal pensmn scheme valuatlon '

The Group held total fund balances at 31 August 2020 of £95,172,654 (2019 - £71,169,368) comprising
£81,525,452 (2019 - £68,016,340) of restricted funds and £3,647,202 (2018 - £3,153,028) of unrestricted general
funds and included within the restricted reserves is a pension reserve deficit of £13,744,000 (2019 - £9,976,000).

The Trust has a restricted fixed assets fund, with a balance of £102,871,274 which is in.respect of fixed assets
and capital expenditure of the Trust, which is not available for general purpose of the Trust and will only be
realised by disposing of the tangible assets.

The pension liability at 31 August 2020 is £13,744,000 which is-shown separately in a restricted fund and the
Trustees continue to review the contribution due based on the reports received from the schemes actuaries
ensuring the cash is available to meet contributions as they fall due.

b. Investment policy

The Academy Trust does not currently have an investment policy as there are no investments. Should a decision
be taken to consider a strategy requiring investment, this would be enshrined in policy. The Trust does however
look to maximise its income through the transfer of uncommitted balances to_short term higher mterest deposit
accounts which it regards as a low risk strategy.
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".'Strategié‘t'e'pbnt'((:t;ntinued)" - _‘." e s : ".'f" R T

é Fmanclal and rlsk management ob;ecttves and po||c1es -

The D|rectc'>rs have. adopted the- statement of recommended practice - (SORP) approach to -identifying and
‘managing the risks of the Trust. The trust's exposure to risk is largely bank balances, trade creditors and debtors
plus its inhérited Local Government Defined Benefits pension scheme deficit for support staff across the Trust.
The Trust assesses the risks-arising from its operations and examines the likelihcod and materiality of each risk."
- The Trust has operational and strategic risk registers which describe the control mechanisms in place to manage.
-or mitigate each risk. The Trust addresses the risk of misappropriation of funds through theft, fraud or other
means by engaging positively with accountancy and internal and external auditing services and verification
processes and using industry standard, bespoke financial packages and systems designed to mitigate risk.

- The MAT strategic risk register is reviewed at all MAT Board meetings and mitigating actions agreed as required
and all changes documented. Each Academy's strategic and operational risk registers are reviewed regularly by
the Local Governing Body via a standing item at their meetings.

d. Financial review

Most of the Trust's income is obtained from the Education Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during
the year ended 31 August 2020 and the associated expendlture are shown as restricted funds in the statement
of financial activities. -

The Trust also receives grants for tangible fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities' SORP (FRS102), such grants are
shown in the statement of financial activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. :

The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life
of the assets concerned.

During the year ended 31 August 2020, total expenditure of £35,143,553 (2019 - £27,399,061) was covered by
recurrent grant funding from the ESFA and other incoming resources. The surplus of income over expenditure
for the year (excluding restricted fixed asset funds of £26,019,745 and the income on conversion of £873,833)
was £877,708 (2019 - £76,056).

At 31 August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets was £101,562,348 (2019 - £76,377,818). Assets were us‘ed
exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to the students of the academies within
the Trust.

The deficit of the pension reserve of £13,744,000 (2019 - £9,976,000). relates to the non-teaching staff pension -
scheme, where, unlike the teachers' scheme, separate assets are held to fund future liabilities as discussed in
note 24. The deficit can be met in the longer term from any combination of increased employer to employee
contributions, increased government fundirig or.changes to scheme benefits.

Page 12



N JOHNTAYLOR MAT

;(A company I|m|ted by guarantee) - ‘ L -':' R _ L «

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED).. -- .~ =~ PR R
FQR,’]_'H_EATYEAR‘ENDED.31‘AUGUSJ]"2_02\0'-' cT o e IUELLTR T e T

Strateglc report(contlnued) - RSN - e AR
..,Fmanclal rev1ew (contmued) S L RET

"e. Gomg-concern e T e s

After’ maklng appropnate enqumes the Dlrectors have a reasonable expectatlon that the- Trust has adequate
resources to .continue in operatnonal ‘existence for the’ foreseeable future.. The ‘Trust and its Central Team

‘ continues_to grow which enables it to support its schools during’ difficult times such as the recenticurrent
pandemic.” This has resulted in our schools suffering no or only.minimal detriment throughout the continuing ™ -
“situation.  Trust schools are regularly over-subscribed and enjoy an -excellent reputation amongst -the
communities.they serve. This, together with careful financial management, has resulted in all schools having a
positive reserve position of varying levels, enabling some to undertake significant capltal planning during the next
few years. For this reason the Trust continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the gomg concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accountlng Policies. . .

' Promotlng the Success of the Compahy

The Board and its Directors are acutely aware of the impact of their decisions upon the success of the company,
and the consequent impact the Trust's success has on the lives, outcomes, and life chances of the children we
make provision for. Clear moral purpose, combined with financial prudence and informed and effective strategic
risk management combine to ensure decisions made regarding growth, investment, and organisational change
are taken with due sobriety and measurement. The Trust's risk management strategy has evolved over many
years, and is seen as a model of effective practice.

All associated with the Trust are aware of its reputational value, and that individual and corporate actions will
enhance or erode that value. As such, we actively monitor and evaluation our engagement with stakeholders,
and seek feedback on how we can improve (see previous section on Engagement with suppliers, customers and
others in a business relation with the Trust). Reputational value assists the Trust in securing pupil admissions by
gaining and retaining the parental confidence of the .communities we serve. It helps to ensure the recruitment of
high calibre professionals who have .ambitions to work for a highly regarded employer that is noted for its
performance and its staff development. It assures the Department for Education and other governmental
agencies that the Trust is worthy of serious consideration for new strategic growth opportunities and consequent
funding streams.
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Strateglcreport(contmued) A Ve e

, Frnancral revrew (contmued) ' o T

] Members and’ dlrectors must have the skrlls know!edge and expenence to riin the MuItr Academy Trust. The|r
dutnes include ensuring that the trust's funds are used only in accordance with the law, its articles ofassocratlon

its fundrng agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook. The Trust will continue to grow and has reached

its target of at feast fourteen schools by 2021, having already out stripped its previous growth projection (eight

schools by 2019). Updated growth targets will be ar‘tlculated in a new strateglc plan to encompass the period

© 2021-24.

Governance KPIl's -

1.
2.

3.

Ensure that distinction is achleved between Member and Drrector roles ‘within the MAT as enshnned in

documentation.

All Members and Directors fully understand their duties as Company Directors and Charity- Trustees as laid
out in the Companies Act 2006 and Charity Commission guidance as exemphfed in a skills audit. .
All schools have a full complement for their Local Governing Bodies, with an appropnate set of skills and
experiences to undertake their defined responsibilities.

Financial KPI's

N

o

@ N>

Ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness over the use of Trust funds (value for money).

Assurance received that annual financial accounts have been properly prepared and are free of materlal
misstatements.

Accounts filed with Companies House for public access by 31 December each year and on the Trust website
by 31 January of the following year.

Al} statutory returns submitted on time.

Staffing costs should be capped at 80% of total Trust income (excluding restricted fixed asset funds) and the
income on conversion/transfer of existing academies however actual staff costs for 2019/20 were 81%.
Alternative sources of funding are pursued, consistent with the Trust's core competencies.

Sufficient levels of income are generated to support the asset base of the Trust.

Sources of funding pursued for capital development projects.

Human Resource KPlI's

hali ol dg

5.

All MAT academies fully staffed with high calibre staff.

Pupil to teacher ratios are favourable compared to national levels.

Development opportunities made available to staff to work across schools in the MAT. :

100%. training penetration rate achieved (calculated as % of employees completing a course of training
compared to total number of employees employed).

100% performance management penetration for all eligible staff across all MAT schools.

School Standards KPI's

LN

All MAT schools retain or improve their Ofsted inspection rating.
Parent, staff and student survey data illustrates satisfaction.
Schools can demonstrate the adding of value to children of all ages, abllmes and backgrounds

" All schools are fully compliant with heaith and safety, safeguarding and other statutory requirements. -
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Plans forfuture perlods ":-'_.';' R s SR e

- Future developments . - PR e e -

- The Academy Trust w1|l contlnue strlvmg to |mprove the Ievels of performance of |ts puplls and students at. aII

levels-and will. continue' its efforts to ensure they secure employment ora place in ngher Educatlon once they -
leave school Key prlontles are identifi ed’in our Strateglc Plan 2018 21: -

Opporturtitles for Strategic Developmeht 1: Teaching and Curriculum

apow

o

Shared training plans to derive and exploit opportunities for collaboration and cross fertilisation of expertise.
Shared training days calendared across MAT schools to facilitate the above. - ’ .

An annual teaching and learing event to showcase innovation and celebrate excellent practice

Close alignment of key performance indicators for teachers across the MAT regarding appraisal to promote
consistency of challenge

Formal teacher secondments and regular development opportunmes for teachers — across schools across
phases.

An on-line reposntory of Iearnlng resources and Iesson vudeo footage to be shared across all schools W|th|n
the MAT.

School improvement reviews to be commussnoned on a regular cycle for all schools within the MAT.

A greater number of Specialist Leaders of Education are recruited from the MAT'S schools to work out of the
National Forest Teaching School.

Opportunities for Strategic Development 2: Leadership

a.

Key performance indicators across the MAT'S schools (e.g. financial position, pupil progress, school
improvement activities, appraisal) can be monitored centrally via a single ‘dashboard’.

An asset register of all MAT assets is clearly formatted and accurate.

All teaching and learning responsibility (TLR) holders have undertaken recognised middle leader training
within two years of taking up their position within the MAT.

All leadership group (LG) post holders have undertaken recegnised senior leader training within two years of
taking up their position within the MAT.

An annual governance event takes place to enable networking and skills development for all Local
Governing Bodies

Policy (and contracts where applicable) alignment across all MAT schools exists, with local contexts taken
into account regarding procedures and protocols.

Formal leadership secondments and regular development opportunities across the MAT.

The Executive Group and School Representation Group are high functioning, effective structures to support
communication and decision making.
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Opportumtles for Strateglc Development3 IT mfrastructure " s - : SRR

a..
. the MAT to improve efficiency ‘and coherence
A MAT wide IT hardware and software mventory is mamtamed

®aoo

-

Key organnsahonal archutecture calendars agendas and minutes pohcres - are shared wnh aII staff across._ e

Commobh IT procedures are implemented across MAT schools to |mprove effncnency
Cross site opportunmes for.data storage and back up are fully utilised. T
Relevant spare stock is'stored by the MAT for emergericy replacement to |ts schools, mlnlmlsmg dlsruptlon
to teaching and management through ‘down time’.

JTMAT web presence, and via social medla is effective in commumcatlng to existing stakeholders and the

- wider community.

Hamessing technology is a regular feature of both the MAT S teaching and governance annual events.
IT related training is delivered to MAT ‘staff on a needs driven, as opposed to school driven, basis.
Existing inter site connectivity is exploited to enable cross site working.

Opportunmes for Strateglc Development 4: Support servnces

a

Key support staff IT techmcuans cover superwsors teachlng assistants work effectively across the
MAT’S schools, demonstrating an increased responsiveness to need, supported by high quality training, .
and opportunities to appoint staff into student support roles across schools are taken where appropriate.
The MAT develops an impressive package of traded services, in conjunction with the National Forest
Teaching School, and delivers high quality schaol improvement, fnanctal support and other packages to
other schools and MATSs.

Commercial income is maximised through a centralisation of lettings provnsuon across the Trust's
schools.
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Prmcnpal nsks and uncertalntles LT T I ST

’ The Academy Trust has undertaken further work dunng the year to develop and- embed the system of. mternal' :
.contral, including fi nancral operatlonal and risk management whtch is desngned to protect the Trust s a5sets and
- reputatlon T - : - . R

: Based on its Terms of Reference the Audit Commtttee undertook a comprehensnve rewew of the risks to whlch
the ‘Trust is exposed: They identified systems and procedures including specific preventable actions which
should mitigate any potential impact‘o‘n the Academy Trust. In addition to the annual review, the Audit Committee
also con5|dered any risks which arose as a result of a new area of work being undertaken by the Trust.-

The Accountmg Officer has responsibility for rewewmg the effectlveness of the system of internal control and
during the year the review has been informed by the work of the Director assigned to check the trust's intemal
controls and the external auditor, as well as the self assessment process. .

A strategic risk register is maintained at the Trust level which is. reviewed at least annually by all Directors and
more frequently where necessary. For each academy within the Trust, both strategic'.and operational risk
registers are in piace, reviewed by Governors on the LGB (it appearing as a standing item on all governing body-
- agendas). The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact
on the Trust and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent
-scoring system. .

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Trust. Not all the factors are within
the Trust's control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the Trust and its
academles

Strategic & Reputational,
Operational Risk,
Compliance Risk,
Financial Risk.

1. Govemment fundtng

The Academy has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the ESFA. In 2019-20, nearly

98% of the Academy's revenue was ultimately public funded. There can be no assurance gained that
government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on
the same terms.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

« - Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements.

* By ensuring the Trust is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training.

. » Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relationships W|th the.ESFA.
o By ensuring that the trust delivers goad value in the use of public resources.

2.- Maintain adequate funding of pension 'Iiabi‘lities

The financial statements report the share of the pension scheme defcn on the Academy's balance sheet in Ilne
with the requirements of FRS 102.

We are aware that the uncertainty currentlyt_surrcunding Brexit could potentially‘impact our operations, service -
users and suppliers. We are reviewing and monitoring the impact of this on an ongoing basis.

Page 17



R s

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 -,

“JOHN TAYLOR MAT : S o N
(A company llmlted by guarantee) TR A . . ';"" L

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED). . .-

Fundralsmg LT A - ~ oL

' "John Taylor Multn Academy Trust does not undertake formal fundralsmg vua external fundralsers AII fundralsmg‘:
C undertaken dunng the year was momtored by the Trustees . : :

_Streamlmed EnergyandCarbonReportmg . ’ . 7 A.A--

" John Taylor Multi Academy Trustis a. Iarge company as determmed by sectlons 465 and-466 of the companles

Act 2006 and-consumes more than 40,000 KWh of energy in a reporting period. This report has been compiled .

-using energy data-from the period 1st September 2019 to 31st August 2020. it should be noted that énergy -

consumption has been impacted negatively for the period schools were required to participate in the national

.lockdown procedures between 23 March 2020 and 31 August 2020 due to the global Corona Virus panderic

and therefore these figures do not represent a typical operatlng level of energy use for an academic year. This
report includes the following for the stated period:

e . its UK energy use and assocrated greenhouse gas emissions, as a minimum relating to gas, purchased
electricity and transport fuet; - .

its energy use and emissions;

an emissions intensity ratio;

methodologies used in the calculatlons

measures taken to improve energy.efficiencies in the period.
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";_Streamllned Energy and Carbon Reportlng (contlnued) _f R

- UK Greenhouse gas emlssmns and energy ‘use data for the_..

_period © - .
qst, September 2019 to 31“ August 2020 A 2
N Energy consumptlon used to calculate emissions (kWh) [ 5.895,383"
“Energy Consumptnon break down (kWh) o .
e Gas- | 3,221,354
‘e Electricity | 1,633,772
e Transport fue! 29,724
e Heating Oil 503,142
s Liquid Petroleum Gas (lpg) 77,298
s Biomass 430,093
| Scape 1 emissions in métric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 5§92.31
Heating LPG 0.64
Heating Qil 118.97
Biomass 6.48
Owned transport — mini- buses 2.26
Total Scope 1 720.66
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e .
Purchased electricity
. 380.90
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles
) 14.35
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 1105.90
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.177

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

Measures taken to improve enerqy eff iciency

education and financial perspective.

The Trust has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have
used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK Governments

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil.

The Trust has not embarked on a specific strategy to improve energy effi cnency, it does have a
considerable awareness of the need to reduce its energy use and this is a major consideration
when carrying out improvements to school buildings. Examples of this can be evidenced with
works such as the replacement of discharge lighting for new energy efficient LED lighting and the
replacement of high gas consuming heating plant for new efficient condensing boiler technology.
Awareness of the need to save energy in the school enwronment is promoted both from an
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' 4 The Trust w1II engage W|th school Ieaders 1n |ts current estate to contmue t9 dnve awareness of energy savung
. principles:. It “is - hoped that continued efforts towards saving. energy could: yueld an overall.10% reduction in

. electricity and gas consuription. -The Trust will Gonsider when-making allocatioris of its schoct improvement fund

(SCA)-to include energy efficient strategies when improving or extending the estate; for .example, ré-roofing
projects will include the upgrading -of insulation as a standard -specification reqmrement where possible. The
Trust has moved to a video conferencing platform with regards to regular and specific meetings, this strategy -
has -predominately been brought about by a need to exercise social distancing during the current COVID
pandemic. This approach will potentially see a significant reduction of business miles claimed by staff,- as the -
- technology to meet in this manner becomes more stable-the Trust will continue with its practice for the
immediate and Ionger-term future. The Trust will continue to work with its current energy advice prowders to’look
at best practice in relation to energy management and usage ‘

Disclosure of information to auditor

* Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and

. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
. relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

The auditor, Mazars LLP, has indicated his willingness to continue in office. The designated Trustees will
propose a motion reappointing the auditor at a meeting of the Trustees.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 14 December 2020 . and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Trustees
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[

Scope of responsrbrllty _l'f' o f: RS = _ ,'-.7 T )

.As Tfustees we acknowledge we have overall responsnblllty for ensunng that John Taylor MAT has an. effectlve .
~ and- appropriate system of contrdl:- financial and otherwise. However such a system-is de5|gned to manage . ..
- rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectlves and can prowde only reasonable and not

_-absolute assurance against matenal mlsstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we" have rewewed and taken account of the gutdance in DfE's Govemance Handbook and

: competency framework for governance

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to day responSIblllty to the CEO as Accountmg Ofﬁcer for
ensuring financial- controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and -
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between John
Taylor MAT and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance-

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the trustees' report and in the
statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year which

" includes one extra-ordlnary meeting scheduled due to the Covid 19 pandemic.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

© Trustee = ) : Meetings attended - Out of a possible
G Moss, (Chair). 7 7
T Hopkins 7
B Richardson . 7 7
A Grandfield MBE 3 7
D Beaty 5 7
A Lee 6 7
A Stainer (first meeting 16 December 2019) 5 6
M Donoghue, (Accounting Officer) 6 7

John Taylor MAT has established robust governance structures with terms of reference for all committees and
these will continue to be reviewed annually. The Board has undertaken a review and self-evaluation of its own
effectiveness and has carried out a skills audit of its members and organised training courses to address specific
needs. A School Representation Group was constituted in 2018, in line with the Trust's growth trajectory, to
ensure that academies within JTMAT have a clear and structured communication mechanism with the MAT
Board.

The Board has undergone no structural changes (still retaining a composition of nine directors) since the
previous trustee's report. The scale and scope of its work remains unchanged, and is discharged through Board
meetings, two Committees (Audit and Compliance, and Achievement and Progress) and individual Director
engagement with the CEO and other senior leaders within the Trust and its schools. .
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Governance (contmued) - ";_f""' R = "_',f—' B R

The Board annually revuews its competences and -its effectlveness and W|II engage in formal self-reﬂection
followmg each. Board meetmg from 2020/21. JTMAT ‘was- subject to-a routme Trust Rewew conducted by
~colleagues from the Department of ‘Education Reglonal Delivery DIVISion (RDD) in 2019, the outcome of which
was_extremely.positive.- -JTMAT is signposted by the Department as’a model-of effective governance, and has
hosted -and led numerous training sessions for the Department on.'a range of toplcs - from CEO Inductlon ’
through Academy finance to governance

The Trust has established an Audit'and Compliance Committee who's'e main purpose is to oversee ‘the audit~
process and related matters-in line with the Trust Scheme of Delegation. The committee met 3 times during the
year. M Donoghue also attended 3 meetings and B Mahoney attended 3 meetings during the year.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:
Trustee ) Meetings attended Out of a possible
B Richardson

J Hodgkinson

A Jenkins -
D Oates

Nwww
Wwww

In addition to the MAT Board, the Trust has established Local Governing Body Managing and Organising
Committees at each school which met 6 times during the year (pro rata for in year joiners). They receive
Management Accounts and detailed financial reports at each meetung in addition to Capital, Health and Safety
and Premises related income and expenditure issues.

Future Plans

In its previous Strategic Plan, the Trust proposed to become a group of eight academies by 2019 (compared with
its four at the. time of writing), with both primary (three further schools) and secondary growth (one school) -
anticipated. Naturally, these projections were subject to revision — and the proposed trajectory was exceeded, as
the Trust by the end of the academic year 2018/19 comprised three secondary schools and nine primaries. A
further infant and nursery school joined the Trust on 1st September 2019 and another secondary school on 1
- February 2020. The Trust Board wholeheartedly and unanimously endorsed these incorporations as an ideal
opportunity to provide exceptional educational provision to more communities in our area, and to further the
Trust's objectives. Consequently, a revised Strategic Plan - (for the period 2018-21) has been constructed and
approved in order to recognise our new position. A new plan will be formulated. for September 2021 for the
period 2021-24. :

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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The Accountlng Ofﬁcer consnders how the academys use of |ts resources has prowded good value for money

dunng each academlc year, and repoits to the Board of Trustées: where value for-money can be improved, - .. E

“including the use of- benchmarklng data” where appropnate The Accounllng ‘Officer for the academy has
-~ delivered lmproved value for money during. the year by: - :

' 1 Robust governance and oversnght of the Academy s ﬁnance )

As Accountmg Officer, | have responSIblhty for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control. | am
informed by the internal audit service — commissioned by the Audit Committee — who undertake reviews of key
financial policies, procedures, and their implementation. Reports are produced which detail the Trust's
compliance and demonstrate that the Trust has robust systems and financial controls in place. These reports are
presented to the Audit Committee in order to elicit a management response, agree any appropriate action be
taken and any further distribution of the report and its implications (e.g. to the Managing and Organlsmg
Committees of Local Governmg Bodies or the MAT Board)

The MAT Board approves the budget each year and is mindful of the need to balance expenditure'against
income to ensure the Trust remains a “going concern”. The MAT Board also receives and approves the Statutory .
Accounts and the External Auditor's Management Report.

2. Reviewing controls and managing risks

The budget is monitored on a regular basis by the Chief Operating Officer (COQ) and the CEQ through the
production of reports that are generated direct from each Academy's financial management systems. Remedial
action is taken to address any significant variances that may have an impact on the budget outturn. ’

The COO reports half termly to the MAT Board, presenting a budget monitoring report which details the
consolidated financial position of the Academies to date and glves an update on the budget for the year,
- including any significant variances.

In turn these are reported, at summary-level, to the LGB Managing and Organising Committees of each
academy indicating their own academy’s financial position. . .

A risk register is reviewed at every meeting by the Trust, and financial risk is reviewed further by the Audit
Committee. The risk register details aspects of procedure and practice that contains risk, the extent of the
impact should the risk manifest itself, the likelihood of the Trust's exposure to such an incidence, and the control
mechanisms in place to mitigate likelihood and impact. Annually, the Audit Committee asks the CEO and COO
the following:

a) Have any risks recorded on the register-materialised?

b) Are there any new risks that have been added since the previous rewew'?

c) Are there any risks that have been removed as no longer applicable since the previous review?

d) - Have there been any adjustments to the control procedures detailed in the register since the previous
review?

In addition, “Risk" is a standing item on all Trust and LGB committee agendas, providing a Eegul‘ar opportunity for
senior leaders, directors and governors to discuss risk and its management outside of an annual review.

The Trustees have produced a Reserves Policy which provides clarity on the extent and use of reserves
denerated by the Trust. This ensures sufficient working capital is provided to cover any cash flow issues that
may arise between expenditure and receipt of grants, and provides a contingency to assist in the management of
any unexpected and urgent costs e.g. emergency maintenance work on site, and provides the resources for
future significant capital projects.
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The Trust. deposuts surplus cash ba1ances m dccounts whlch offer the best |nterest rates avallable for secure

investment to maximise interest earning potential. In 2019-20, this proved an. effective strategy resulting in £43k.
" The. Trust expldres every opportunity to generate income through~fund raising and. grant applications. The
successful applicatioh for Free School provision in Tatenhill has significantly added to the Trust's infrastructure,
as has the successful applicatior for the nursery and primary Free Schools at Fradley Park and Branston Locks
together with growth from the incorporation of additional schools

As the hub school for a Teaching School Alllance (The National Forest Teachmg School) John Taylor High
. School encourages applications for grants and funding streams that provide opportunities to engage in research
and development, initial teacher-training, school to school support and other strategies that directly relate to the
Trust's core purpose and mission. The accommodation of nursery provision. at several of our primary schools
also generates income for the Trust. Income generated from lettings has also risen, and the Trust continues to
seek ways in which it can enhance its use as a community resource and generate additional income towards its
core activities in the process. Seeking Teaching School Hub status in 2020-21 could also markedly improve
income generation. . . .

4. Ensuring value for money is achieved and resources are used efficiently and effectively

The CEO and COO prepare the budget for directors' approval from the priorities established in the Strategic Plan
produced with reference to the Academy's Strategic Plan 2018-21, available at www.jtmat.co.uk. Through the
improvement planning and self-evaluation processes, the Trust evaluates the effectiveness of strategies
introduced in’ previous years in order to secure greater effectiveness and efficiency of resource deployment in
subsequent plans. This is also assisted by the use of a self-evaluation tool at Trust level.

The staffing structures of the Trust's academies are reviewed annually by the Local Governing Bodies of each
Academy and staffing is deployed to drive and support curriculum delivery, intervention initiatives, and wider
school improvement. Targeted and restricted funding (e.g. Pupil Premium) is deployed in accordance with -
criteria associated with it.

Contracts and services are regularly appraised and renegotiated when appropriate to ensure value for money.
The Trust and its Academies seek muitiple quotations for goods and services where possible. In exceptional
circumstances when it is not possible to secure several alternative costings, the reason is recorded in the
Procurement Waiver documentation. The Trust utilises benchmarking information where available.

The Trust works closely with other local schools and academies to ensure best value. Through the Teaching
School Alliance and other partnerships, economies of scale can be gained when procuring teacher training .
courses and other resources relating to our core activities. The Trust always assesses the costs and benefits of
various options before making a purchasing decision in order to ensure that such a decision is securing best
value and is the right option for the Academy for the longer term.
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] ‘._The system of rntemai control is desrgned to manage risk’ to a reasonable level rather than to ehmmate all risk of )

““failuré to achieve. policies, aims and objectives; it can -therefore only provide. reasonable and net absolute .. -
assurance of effectiveness. The system “of internal-control is* based on an ongoing process desrgned to identify -
" and prioritise the risks to the’achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of -
* those risks being realised and the impact should.they be-realised, and to' manage them efficiently, effectively and’
economrcally ‘The system of internal control 'has been in place in John Taylor MAT forthe year 1 September
© 2018 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and fmancral statements

Capamty to handle risk

The Dlrectors have reviewed the key risks to whlch the Trust is exposed together with the operating, ﬁnancral
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Trust Board is of the view that
there is a formal on going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has
been in place for the year ended 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements This process is regularly reviewed by the Trust Board

. The risk and control framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particutar, it includes:

. comprehensive budgetlng and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
“which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes 4

setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasrng (asset purchase or capital mvestment) guldehnes
. identification and management of risks
. exceptional nsk assessments for Covid-19 related risks.

All of the above is augmented by the Trust's Whlstleblowmg Policy which is avarlable to all stakeholders.

The Audit Committee has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and currently utilises the
services of RSM UK Group LLP auditors as internal auditor which reports biannually. The key areas of focus for
the audit committee has been around operational and regularity issues with a particular focus on the risk of
fraud.
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; JOHN TAYLOR MAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

'ReVieWofeffecti\ieness I e _ e

As Accountmg Off'cer the CEO has responsublllty for rewewung the effectiveness of the system of |nterna|. .
control During the year | in question the review has been mformed by s : -

“e . the work of the external auditors; .~ - - : ST - ]
" . the financial management and governance self-assessment process; : :
S -Te " the work of the executivé managers within the Academy Trust who have responsmllity for the development

and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The # Accouriting Officer has been advised of the implications of the iesult of their review of the system of internal
control by the external ‘auditors and executive- managers and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure -
continuous improvement of the system is in place. . :

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

G. Moss - ' . ’ M. Dgnyoighue

G Moss R . : M Donoghue
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
Date: 14 December 2020 ' . Date: 14 December 2020
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.(A company limited by guarantee) - L - - SEIE ' . Ll

- 'STATEMENT.ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

" As Accountmg Offlcer of John Taylor MAT l have con5|dered my respon5|b|hty to notlfy the Academy Trust board s
- of. Trustees and the. Educatlon & Skills, Funding-Agency {ESFA) of material- irregularity, !mpropnety and non- -

:j'i'compllance with terms and’-conditions “of -all funding .received by the Academy Trust, ‘under the funding - -
-.agreement in_place between ‘the Academy Trust and -the Secretary of State- for Educatlon As ‘part-of my- © -

con5|derat|on I have ‘had due regard to the requwements of the Academles Fmancnal Handbook 2019

o confrm that | and the- Academy Trust ‘Board of Trustees are able to |dent|fy any materlal |rregu|ar or |mproper_

. use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-comphance with the terms and conditions of funding
. under the Academy Trust's fundmg agreement and the Academles Fmancval Handbook 2019

I confirm that no instances of material lrregularlty, impropriety or. funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA. -

................................................

- M Donoghue-
Accounting Officer

Date: 14 December 2020
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""‘(A company limited by guarantee) g _ Lo ,«i*_. - oL T

. :_-';.STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES" RESPONSIBILlTIES
o 'FQR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 L

- ‘The Trustees (who are also the directors - of \he chantable company for- !he purposes of company law)- are

. Tesponsible for preparing. the trustees' report and. the financia _statemients in accordance with the Academjes .
"~ Accounts Direction published- by. the :Education and Skills- Fundmg Agency, United Kingdom:- Accountmg

- Standards (Unlted Klngdom Generally Accepted Accountlng Practlce) and appllcable Iaw and regulatlons '

o Company law reqUires; the T[ustees to prepare financial s}atements for each ﬁnaric_ial'yea_r. Under-company law, ...
" _the Trustees must not approve-the financial statements unléss they .are satisfied that they give a true and fair -~
~ view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expendlture for that penod In preparlng these f nancnal statements, the Trustees are
required to:”

¢  select su1table accountlng policies and then apply them ccnsnstently. ‘

e observe the methods and pnncnples of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020, '
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basus unless it is lnappropnate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

" The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
‘management. They are also responSIbIe for ensunng grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Trustees

Date: 14 December 2020
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JOHN TAYLOR MAT ) : : ﬁ ; . . .
(A company Ilmlted by guarantee) . B . - s - } L L

’ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON; THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN
TAYLOR MAT Ce :

Opmuon i

We have audlted the f nanmal statements of- John Taylor MAT (the 'Academy Trust) for the year ended 31
August 2020 which compnse the Statement of Financial ‘Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash -
Flows_and notes to the financial statements,.including a summary of 5|gn|fcant accountmg polncnes The financial
reporting framework that' has been applied in_their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting
- Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(United Kingdom Generally. Accepted Accounting Practice), Accounting and Reporting by Charities; Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable fo Charities (Charities SORP 2019) and the Academues Accounts Dlrectlon
2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency : :

In our opinion the ﬁnanc1al statements

give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expendlture for the year then
ended; -

‘have been properly prepared in accordance W|th United ngdom Generally Accepted Accountmg

Practice; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in‘accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
_basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accountlng in the preparatlon of the financial statements is
not appropnate or .

the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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(Axcompany Ilmlted by guarantee) g . ) Vfi'-- P ' .o ‘

- ~-INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN
TAYLOR MAT (CONTINUED) : . R Jk

‘A_Otllief'infqr'r'riatioh': e P TEE -

. . The Tristees are. resporisible- fof thé other information. The- other: |nforfhat|oh comprises the information included-
--in the trustees’ report, ‘other than the financial statements and. our auditors’ reports thereon..Our opinion on the

fi inancial statements does not cover the other information and _exceptto the extent otherwuse explncntly stated in..

our report we do not express-any form of assurarice conclusion thereon

‘In connectlon with our audlt of the financial statements, our responsnblllty is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 'such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required ta report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard; :
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the trustees’ report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the trustees’ report i‘ncluding the incarporated strategic report' have been prepare'd' in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are req’uIred to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the. audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ report including the
|ncorporated strateglc report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: .

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been '
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e - we have not received all the-information and explanations we require for our audit.
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JOHN TAYLOR MAT ) . C B . . .
-~ (A company Ilmlted by guarantee) L e - _ et

o INDEPENDENT AUDITOR s REPQRT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF . JOHN

¥ ﬁResp.o_nsibiIities6fTrilstees:' L ST LT

' As explalned ‘more fully in the Trustees responstblhtles statement on page 27 the Trustees (who are. also’ the.' e

. directors for the purposés of company. law) are responsnble for the preparation of the financial statements and for
belng satisfied that they give a'true and fair view, and for such internal- control as-the Trustees. determine is.
necessary to. enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether
due to fraud or error.. . S

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue. as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operatlons or have no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Audit_or"s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements.is located .on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Der) Yoo

David Hoose (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

Park View House
.58 The Ropewalk
Nottingham

' NG1 5DW

Date: 16 (lLlZO 2°
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(A company Ilmlted by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON: REGULARITY TO JOHN

- K TAYLOR MAT AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

“In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 12 September 2020 and further to the requirements
.. of-the Educatien & Skills Fundnng ‘Agency (ESFA) as included in.the Academies Accounts-Direction 2019 to -
.- 2020, we have carried out-an’ engagement to obtain limited ‘assurance about whether the. expenditure disbursed -

“and income received by John Taylor MAT during ‘the year 1° September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been - R
. applied to the purposes |dent|f ed by Parllament and ‘the ﬁnancnal transactlons conform to the authorutles whlch ;

govern them . - S - . .

~ This report is made solely to John Taylor MAT and the ESFA in. accordance with the terms of our engagement
__ letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to John Taylor MAT and the ESFA those matters
" we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not

accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than John Taylor MAT and the ESFA, for our work, for thls )
_report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of John Taylor MAT's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of John Taylor MAT's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 28 May 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objectlve of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. Planning our assurance procedures including identifying key risks;
. Carrying out sample testing on contrals;
. Carrying out substantive testing including analytlcal rewew and

~+  Concluding on procedures carried out.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO JOHN
. TAYLOR. MAT AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

-C'o‘nclusion“' e )

In the course of our. work nothlng has come to our attenhon whlch suggest in. all matenal respects the '

:‘expenditure disbursed and income received during.the year 1. ‘September 2019 to 31. Aligust 2020 has not.been oo

applled to purposes mtended by Parllament and the’ fnanual transact|ons do not conform to the authontles WhICh
. govern them .. . S B . .

Moa,n LL/

Mazars LLP

Park View House
58 The Ropewalk
Nottingham

NG1 5DW .

Date: {{, In.(Zo?.o
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' ‘JOHN TAYLOR MAT L
. .1'_(A company Ilmlted by guarantee)

’ STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

jﬁgu'FORTHEYEARENDED$1AUGUSTﬂno

. "Restricted -

Net income 554,084

Unrestneted Iiestriqt"ed-u_ --fixed asset Total'-_.-.- E ‘Total - '
. . funds .. - funds - funds-. - fundsv' E funds. -
AL 2020 72020 . 2020 2020 - 2019
Note . f - - T ES e . g
Income from:” B ’ ’ “
*Donations and capntal -

grants: . 3-
- Transfer-from local

authority on , : o , : _—

conversion 469,751 (1,012,918) 27,259,786 26,716,619 30,995,813

Other donations and )

capital grants i 86,850 - 1,299,806 1,386,656 1,182,069
Charitable activities: ' '

Funding for the

Academy Trust's

educational

operations 4 225,295 30,158,008 - 30,383,303 23,037,423
Teaching schools 29 - 1,204,346 - 1,204,346 1,366,655
Other trading activities 5 340,070 181,842 - 521,912 639,570
Investments 6 43,003 < - 43,003 17,484
Total income 1,164,969 30,531,278 28,559,592 60,255,839 57,239,014
Expenditure on: .
Raising funds 7 357,741 163,400 - 521',_141 ) ’491.580
Charitable activities:

Academy Trust
" educational

operations 8 253,144 -30,769,543 2,596,819 - 33,619,506 25,517,023

Teaching schools - 1,002,906 - 1,002,906 1,390,458
Total éxpenditure 610,885 31,935,849 2,596,819 - 35,143,553 27,399,061

(1,404,571) 25,862,773 25,112,286 29,839,953
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o STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING mcome AND EXPENDITU RE ACCOUNT)
(CONTINUED) . o O
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

- ‘Restricted

funds -
2019

. _Unrestrlcted- . Restricted  ‘fixed-asset . . . Total . -Total -
) funds ~° ° funds funds funds -
oo T 2020 2020 . 2020 . 2020 -
Note . £ £ . £ £ £
Netincome . 554,084  (1,404,571) 25962773  25112,286 29,839,953
‘Transfers between .
funds | 17 (59,910) 2,938 56,972 - -
Net movement in ’
funds before other ) ) .
recognised ; - - - - .
 gains/(losses) 494,174 (1,401,633) . 26,019,745 25,112,286 . 29,839,953
Other recognised '
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit :
pension schemes 24 - (1,109,000) ) - (1,109,000) (2,448,000)
Nf&:’;‘:’e"‘e"“" 494,174  (2,510,633) 26,019,745 24,003,286 27,391,953
Reconciliation of '
funds:
Total funds brought :
A * forward 3,153,028 (8,835,189) °~ 76,851,529 71,169,368 © 43,777,415
Net movement in funds 494 174 (2,510,633) 26,019,745 24,003,286 27,391 953
Total funds carried 3,647,202  (11,345,822) 102,871,274 95,172,664 71,169,368

forward
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"7 JOHN TAYLORMAT =+

-~ " (A company limited by"gﬁalfé:mée)"
... .'REGISTERED NUMBER: 07421140

" .BALANCE SHEET . .-

.’Fi}xedasséts_ ©e

. Tangible assets

Curreni_assets )

Debtors ~
Cash at bank and in hand

Créditors: Amounts falling due within one
year '

Net current assets

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit ‘pension scheme liability
Totai net assets

Funds of the A_cademy Trust
Restricted funds:

" Fixed ass'et funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension liability

.Pension reserve

Total restricted funds '
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

15

21

16

24

17

17

17

17

17
17

~- 2020
101,562,348
. 101,562,348

1,067,714 -
9,171,796

10,239,510

(2,885,204)
7,354,306

108,916,654
(13,744,000)

95,172,654
102,871,274
2,398,178
105,269,452
(13,744,000)

91,525,452

3,647,202

95,172,654

2019

76,377,818
76,377,818
- 596,493
6,348,492
6,944,985
(2,177,435)
4,767,550
81,145,368
(9,976,000)
71,169,368
76,851,529
1,140,811
77,992,340
(9,976,000)
68,016,340
3,153,028

71,169,368
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(A company limited by guarantee) LTt : cno LTS .
REGISTERED NUMBER 07421140, T SR

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) - ; ‘
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020 )

The financial statements on pages 34 to 72 were approved and authonsed for issue by the. Trustees and are
srgnedonthelrbehalf by . R R ST

Caetestatasesrteranesansesertsannsdirorensasenes

Chalr of Trustees

. Date: 14 December 2020

The notes on pages 39 ta 72 form part of these financial statements.
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APTRIIPILNY . P AT

" STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS - - ‘-
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 ...

ot ..caéﬁ'ﬂo;vg f'r‘b_r-q operatmg aji:.ti\)i.tizgs ’

. A'. Net éas;h :;;ro:\;id'i;d,'l).; At;;gr'atiihgjpctniviﬁe.s.v g
Cash ﬂoﬁé'fror;l ;r;v'és':t‘ingfactivities - |
Change in césh and ca;h equivalents in ttie year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

4 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on -pages 39 to 72 form part of theée finaﬁcial stateméntsT

--769,704
© 2,053,600 -

2823304

- 6,348,492 -

21, 22

1,190,173

1,043,702

2,233,875

4,114,617

9,171,796

6,348,492
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,JOHN TAYLOR MAT i
(A company Ilmlted by ‘guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . o
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 n o

1 Accountnngpollcws— - L TR

E ~except where noted) judgements and key sources of estlmatlon uncertalnty, is set out below

1.4 'Basus of preparatlon off'nancual statements - ’

The ﬂnanmal statements of the Academy Trust whlch is a pubhc beneft entlty under’ FRS 102, have
béen prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reportlng -
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102), the' Accounting and Reporting by -
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in

accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the

ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

John Taylor MAT meets the definition of a public benefit ehtity under FRS 102.
1.2 Going concern -

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
"a period .of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Page 39

A summary “of the - prlnt:lpal accountmg pohcnes adopted (whlch have been applled conSIstentIy,j} e



R -;‘JOHNTAYLORMAT _ o . .
(A company llmlted by guarantee) I g L ik

" 'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .. .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 . ~ - .. "

1.

Accountlng pollcles (contlnued) R ~ R

13 Income ._‘_'-,"_':A.i_ -_ R

'AII mcommg resources are recogmsed when the Academy Trust has entttlement to the funds the '
'-recetpt is probable and the’ amount can- be measured rehably

’ Grants : .
Grants are mcluded in the statement of ﬁnanual activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of

income recelved for specific purposes but not expended during the penod is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income -is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and‘included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entittement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognlsed in full in the statement of financial activities in the year for which

it is receivable and any abatement in respect of thé year is deducted from income and recognlsed as

. a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent

amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital -

grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a recelvable basis (where there are no performance related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facnmes is recognised in the year it is recelvable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Academy Trust on conversion to an academy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when
the risks and réwards of ownership pass to the Academy Trust. An equal amount of income is
recognised as a transfer on conversion within ‘Income from donations and capital grants' to the net
assets received.
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

. Aeéd‘hptiri'g'pqlicies_(continded)f-:'. T AT e

1 4 Expendlture

Expendlture is recognlsed once there is 3 Iega| or constructlve oblvgatlon to transfer economlc benef't

. lo a:third party, it is probable that a_transfer of economic benefits will be Tequired in- settlement and

thé amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support.costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a _single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This.includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for |ts chantable purposes
and includes costs of aII fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable actlvmes

‘These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £10,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
deprecuatlon and any provision for impairment.

Where. tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected.useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:
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A Accountmg polncues (contmued)

15

Tangible fi xed assets (contlnued)

N ‘Deprematlon is provuded on the followmg bases R

1.6

1.7

" Freehold property . Tl

- Long-term leasehold property - - 2%
Furniture and equipment - 10%
Computer equipment ' . - 33.3%
Motor vehicles : - 20%

The Academy Trust occupies certain land (including buildings) which are owned by its Trustees. The
Trustees are the providers of the academies on the same basis as when the academies were
maintained schools. The Academy Trust occupies the land (and buildings) under a mere licence. This

- continuing permission of their Trustees is pursuant to, and subject to, the Trustees' charitable

objects, and is part of the Church's contribution since 1847 to provide State funded education in
partnershi_p with the State.

The licence delegates aspects of the management of the land (and buildings) to the Academy Trust
for the time being, but does not vest any rights over the land in the Academy Trust. The Trustees
have given an undertaking to the Secretary of State that they will not give the Academy Trust less
than two years notice to terminate the occupation of the land (including buildings). Having considered
the factual matrix under which the Academy Trust is occupying the land (and buildings) the directors
have concluded that the value of the land and buildings occupied by the Academy Trust will not be
recognised on the balance sheet of the company.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate .
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying .
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for»
the goads or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the.reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts,- discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific-to the Ilablllty The
unwmdmg of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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1.

Accountmg pollcies (contlnued)

18

1.9

Leased assets

_Rentals under operatlng leases are charged ona stralght-llne baS|s over the lease term . -

Flna nclal mstruments

The Academy Trust only holds basrc financial mstruments as defned in FRS 102. The fnanmal
assets and fnancual liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows: .

Fmanc;a/ assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income’ is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to dellver services

- rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.10 Taxation

- The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance

Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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o 111Pen5|ons

Accodhfiqg,ﬁeiic_ies (Eontinued) R

Retlremen! benefits: to employees of the Academy Trust are prowded by the Teachers Pensu)n -

-Scheme (“TPS") ‘and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defned benefit .

chemes

The TP_S is an .unfunded'scheme and contributions are calculated ‘so as to spread the cost of -
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost

' . is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are

determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer-scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for -
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are
the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recagnised gains and losses.

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. .

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general fﬁnds comprise all other restricted funds received with restriction's imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

1.13 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments
received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of -

_ financial activities as the Academy Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the -
. funds. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 28.
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2 ".__Crltlcal accountmg esﬂmates and areas of;udgement ST e T

Estlmates and |udgements are contmually evaluated and -are based on, hlstoncal experlence and other<-:,
-factors |ncludlng expectatlons of future -events that ‘are belleved to: 'be reasonable under the :
'cwcumstances ) - B

* Critical accountmg eatin{a_tes and assumptions:

The Academy Trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The  resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal thé related actual results: The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or.income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability."Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension ||ab|I|ty

The Academy Trust occupies certain land (including buildings) which are owned by its Trustees. The
Trustees are the providers of the academies on the same basis as when the academies were maintained
schools. The Academy Trust occupies the land (and buildings) under a mere licence. The Trustees have
given an undertaking to the Secretary of State that they will not give the Academy Trust less than two -
years notice to terminate the occupation of the land (including buildings). Having considered the factual
matrix under which the Academy Trust is occupying the land (and buildings) the directors have concluded
that the value of the land and buildings occupied by the Academy Trust will not be recognised on the
balance sheet of the company.

. Critical areas of judgement:
At 4 of the trust's academies, the charitable company occupies the buildings under a Church

Supplemental Agreement which includes a two year break clause, thus judgement has been applied in
determining that these buildings should not be recognised on the balance sheet.
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= 3 ' Inczc)‘n'l'e'ffgiiﬁ‘donation;-s‘and éapiialf'géli'a'nfs':j IR oL T -

- ..z - L .. Restdcted. i - o
" Unrestricted -. Restricted fixed'asset .  Total - Total
.funds .~ funds - = funds ..~ funds. ~ funds .

-2020. 2020 -72020 . 2020 - 2019 " .

£ I R S 3 £

Transfer frém local éuthdrily on . . ' : : '
conversion : . ’ 469,751 (1.912.918) 27,259,786 26,716,619 30,995,813

Other donations » ‘ 86,850 - - 86,850 234,420
Capital Grants o - - 1,299,806 1,299,806 947,649

“Total 2020 .~ 556601 (1,012.918) 28,559,592 28,103,275 32,177,882

Total 2019 514,462 (237,617) - 31,901,037 32,177,882

Page 46



N JOHN TAYLOR MAT

A company |IMIted by guarantee) S S " . S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS "
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST-2020 -

4 Fundmg for the Academy Trust‘s educational 'i;pera_tions"_:“ _ Sl s S T

Unrestricted Restricted - Total . _ "Total -

S A s e LS LT funds - - = fundé - - - funds.- - - funds
. ... 2020 -0 2020 -.2020 -TT2019 -
DfE/ESFA grants - : ' . ‘ ; . o : ;
‘Gerieral annual grant (GAG) =~ - '25.3_13,216 25,313,216 18,863,905
Start'up grants - a o 228,500 = 228,500 230,000
Other DfE Group grants - 3,276,341 ) 3,276,341 1,742,200
Teaching school grants ' : - 333,225 333,225 272,280

- 29,151,282 29,151,282 22,108,385

Other goverhment grants

Local authority grants - - - 976,200 976,200 710,362

Other income from the Academy Trust's .

- educational operations . 225295 - - 225,295 218,676
225,295 976,200 1,201,495 ' 929,038

Exceptional government funding

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant . - 5,706 5,706 -
-Coronavirus exceptional support - 24,820 24,820 -
Total 2020 ‘ 225,295 30,158,008 -30.383,303 23,037,423
Total 2019 : ' 218,676 22,818,747 23,037,423

The Academy Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support
- schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under
“exceptional government funding”.

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £24 820 of free school meal and
cleaning costs. These costs are |ncluded in note 7 below as appropnate

The academy furloughed some of its wrap around care staff under the government's CJRS. The fundmg
_recelved of £5,706 relates to staff costs which are included within note 10 below as appropriate.
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5 dthéAr-t'f.aang_acti\iitiés : g : -

: : _"UnAreét!'ic‘ted _Reétrilc't"e'd.' ) ‘Tota'! E _’T-_'ovt:a.l
o 3 : " funds " funds funds “funds

Hire of facilities -

- Income from other charitable activities

Total 2020

Total 2019

6. Investment income

Interest from short term deposits

Total 2019

12020

-45,958

294,112

. 2020 -
. * . i £

181,842-

2020
.EA.

" 45,958 -
475,954

75,741
563,829

340,070

181,842

521,912

639,570

418,375"

221,195

Unrestricted

~funds
2020
£

43,003

639,570

Total
funds
2020

43,003

17,484

17,484

Total
funds
2019

17,484
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A

Resoiirces expended = .- 7 . s

's'taff Costs - )
T 2020
L

Ekbenditure on fundraising

trad‘ing acti.vities ) i ' -

‘Educational operations:
‘Direct costs ) 19,085,004

Support costs - ‘ 6,763,278
Teaching schools . . 237,450

1,722,114

2,181,868

Qre,rﬁis_es L
2020 _
. £...-.

2020

g

521,141

1,585,454

2,281,788 .

.765,456

6th‘ér )

L Totalw
2020
.. : .-<~

- .521,141

22,392,572

11,226,934
1,002,906

491,580
16,203,081

19,313,942
1,390,458

" Total 2020 © 26,085,732

3,903,982 -

5,153,839

35,143,553

27,399 061

Total 2019 19,380,213

2,947,281

5,071,567

27,399,061

Charitable activities

Direct costs — eddcational operations -
Support costs — educational operations

2020
£

22,392,572
11,226,934

2019
- £

16,203,081
9,313,942

33,619,506

25,517,023
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8. Charitabie activities (Continued) =~ - ..

72 Analysis @f_s{upbo‘n'coéts" s
" Suppoit staff costs

Depreciation
Technology costs

. Premises costs ‘
Legal costs - conversion
Other support costs
Governance costs

9. Net income

Net income for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditor for:

- audit
- other services

6,763,278

" 516,183
. 508,206

2,181,868

18,561
1,191,035
47,803

5,854,763 .

516,436 -
303,607
1,780,316 -
708,736
50,084

11,226,934. "

9,313,942

2020 -

£

70,393
2,238,298

31,160
9,095

. 2019
£

73,164
1,831,483

28,500
7,915
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- a Staff costs

- Staff.costs during the year were as follows: . S

" Social security costs " ’ . . B - 1,799,626
. Pension costs . ’ - - 5,506,350

20200
- Wages and salaries B - ool . 18,351,059

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ *FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020. :

2019
R
14,381,030 .
1,401,269
3,380,954 -

25,657,035

Agency staff costs . ’ - 428,697
-Staff restructuring costs T - . -

19,163,253

196,418
20542 .

| 26,085,732

19,380,213

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Settlement agreements » . ) . -

b. Staff numbers

20,542

‘The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2020
No.

Teachers : 298
Administration and support ) - 402
Management _ ' : -7

2019
" No.

241
301
54

762

586
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10. :_.'.Staff (contmued) T e TR T

c ngher pald staff - S

'The number of employees whose employee beneﬁts (excludlng employer pensuon costs) exceeded4 )

} £60 000 was:

2020 . 2019

: . _ . : ) : ~ No. -No.

In the band £60,001 - £70;000 , : : - T 5
Inthe band £70,001 - £80,000 . ' S 6

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 . 5 1

In the band £130,001 - £140,000 ' : - 1

" In the band £140,001 - £150,000 . _ . 1 -

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,578,339 (2019 - £1,205,969).
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"4 .: :

:Central sewlces LR T e .:__'—' h SRR B S

- -.'The Academy Trust has provuded the followmg central serwces to »ts academles durlng the year

o 'human resources
" financial services - -~
legal services ’ :
educational support services; or -
.others as arising ‘

: The Academy Trust charges for these servnces on the foIIowmg basis:

The academy charges for these services on a scale ranging from 3% - 6% based on Ofsted rating at the
point of conversion - 3% for outstanding to 6% for |nadequate rated schools. Newly opened schools are
initially assessed at 4%.

The actual amounts ‘charged during thé year were as follows:

2020 ’ 2019
. £ £
John Taylor High School ' 220,390 212,772
Kingsmead School 212,030 214,248
Thomas Russell Infants School 27,407 27,000
Yoxall St Peters School =~ ) : ‘ ’ 22,801 21,912
Rykneld Primary School ' 83,720 74,268
Shobnall Primary School . . 25,427 26,136 -
Mosley Academy - ’ : : 21,473 19,764
Winshill Village Primary and Nursery School . 48,287 49,092
John Taylor Free School , _ ' - 86,884 42,636
Needwood Primary School 11,591 8,064
All Saints Primary School ' ' 13,192 9,675
Walton on Trent School 15,735 9,848
Church Gresley Infant and-Nursery School . 39,144 -
Paulet High School ' 98,119 -
Total =~ . ' ' ' 926,200 715,415
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13.

employment The value of Trustees remuneratlon and other benefrts was-as follows

Trustees remuneratlon and expenses

One or more Trustees has been pald remuneratron or has recewed other beneﬁts from an employmenx
 with the Academy Trust. The principal: and other staff Trustees only feceive remuneration in respect of.
“.services they provide ‘undertaking the roles of ‘principal- and staff members under their - contracts of

2026 2019

£000 - - £000
M Donoghue, (Acccuntihg Officer) 'Remuneration o . 145 - 150 130-135
: : h , ~ Pension contributions paid . 35-40 © 20-25

During the year ended 31 August 2020, expenses’totalling £384 were reimbursed or paid directly to 1
Trustee (2019 - £586 to 1 Trustee). Expenses reimbursed to the CEO, who is the only Trustee that is a
member of staff, were pard whilst carrying out their dutles as an Academy Trust employee and not as a
- Trustee. .

Trustees' and Ofﬁcers' insurance.

‘The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy Trust business, and provides unlimited cover. it is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
“officers’ indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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f~'>1:4'.'4."‘AT:angib|e tj’u'(ed assets: - IR . o 14-3:3: ‘

15.

" Longterm Furniture:.

KN Freehold - leasehold ~- - . -.and

Cost ‘

A1 September -

2019
Additions
Acquisitions .
Disposals

At 31 August 2020

Depreciation

At 1 September
2019

Charge for the year
On disposals

At 31 August 2020

Net book value

At 31 August 2020

At 31 August 2019

Debtors

Trade debtors.
VAT repayable
Other debtors

-¢o;ﬁputér

. Motor

Due within one year

- . Prepayments and accrued income

1,067,714

_property . property . equipment equipment. . yeh'iclesn-l .
R TR £ £
16,605,000 62,593,586 - 841,818 1438248 81,640 -81,560,292 .

; 155,085 29,950 67,793 . 252,828

- 27,170,000 - - . 27.170,000

; - - (56,923) - (56.923)
16,605,000 89918671 - 871768 1449118 81640 108,926,197
1,027,600 3380234 106,119 622,373 46148 5,182,474
256,900 1465214 84681 417,861 13642 2,238,298
- - . (56,923) - (56,923)

1,284,500 4845448 190,800 983,311 59790 7,363,849
15,320,500 85073223 680,968 465,807 21850 101,562,348
15,577,400 59213352 735699 815875 35492 76,377,818

2020 2019

£ £
9123 17,288
200,020 106,539
8,321 4161
850,250 . 468,505
596,493
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16 :Ciédigors: Am?:imts falliﬁg.d-l.lié'\ﬁi'ihin.one'-y;ér o o ceE
ST e e e T T 020 L 2019

- Trade creditors - - ] S A i © 736,438
" Ofher taxation and social security” - e . 461,484
-Other creditors L ' o 732,503
-Aécruals and deferredincome 0 - . - S- L. 954779

561,172,

" 365,257

© 525,987
725,019 - -

2,885,204

 2.177,435

2020
. s >

Deferred income : . o
Deferred income at 1 September 2019 o ) .422,971
Resources deferred during the year 486,937

- Amounts released from previous periods . ‘ (422,971)

2019
£

525,946
422,971
(525,946)

486,937

422,971

Included within deferred income is £399,448 (2019 - £330,261) relating to grants received in advance in
~the year. Income of £87,489 (2019 - £82,710) which relates to trip income, music tuition, capitation and

dinner monies for the 2020/21 financial year has also been deferred.
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Ll :,1'7:‘- ",Statem.e;rhl_t of fuinds - S

- - L B_ala‘ncé"ati-,‘-

- Transfers .. -

"+ - -, Balance at .

September- R _ -Gai_'ns_l"’-'; 31 August
" 2019 ‘Income Expenditire ~~ infout . ‘(Losses) - 2020
- e . £ " E _.‘ £ . - £ - . - E
Unrestricted. . SRR . s
funds ’ . A _
General Funds = 3,153,028 1,164,969 . (610,885) *(59,910) = 7T 3,647,202
, Restricted
general funds
General Annual , :
Grant (GAG) - 1,140,811 25313216 -(24,058,787) 2,938 - 2,398,178
Start Up Grants - 228,500 (228,500) o= s -
Pupil Premium - 1,095494  (1,095,494) - - -
Other grants - 5,311,068 (5,311,068) - - -
Pension reserve  (9,976,000) (1,417,000) (1,242,000) - (1,108,000) - (13,744,000)
(8,835,189) 30,531,278 = (31,935,849) 2,938  (1,109,000) (11,345,822)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE/ESFA :
capital grants 1,559,938 1,299,806 (794,605) - - 2,065,139
Assets donated ’
on conversion 75,179,656 27,259,786 (1,746,174) - - 100,693,268 -
Capital
expenditure _
from GAG . 111,935 - (56,040) 56,972 - 112,867
76,851,529 23,559,592 (2,596,819) 56,972 - 102,871,274
Total' Restricted N » : ' ’
funds 68,016,340 59,090,870 (34,532,668) 59,910  (1,109,000) 91,525,452
Totai funds 71,169,368 60,255,839 (35,143,553) - (1,109,000) 95,172,654
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Statement—of funds’ (contmued) o TLET IR iR e

Thespemfc purposes for whlch the funds are to be applled are as fellows :_~ . K ~ ..-:_

Restncted general fund
" The General Annual- Grant isthe recurrent funding to be used for the. educational purposes in accordance

- with the Academy Trust's' Funding Agreement. with 'thé DfE. The pension .reserve-of £13,744,000

(overdrawn) represents the Academy Trust's share of the def citin the Staffordshire’ Pensmn F und. .

Payments are -being made in line with those requured by the tn annual-valuation in order to reduce the
trust's share of the deficit.

Restrlcted other funds

From time to time, additional fund are applied for as set out above or specific purposes_laid down by the.

grant provider and to be. used for educational purposes.

Fixed asset funds

This fund represents the net book value ‘of fixed assets that the Academy Trust has purchased out of
grants and donations received or were transfeired on conversion. It also includes unspent capital monies
at the year end. .

Unrestricted funds
The unrestricted funds represent funds available to the Trustees to appIy for for the general purposes of
the Academy Trust.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Transfers relate to GAG funds used for capital expenditure.
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TATEMENTS.

-.A_:'Aﬁ.Tot'a'I funds a'nal'ysisiby "a.:cal::'!e'my R L

gy

. Fund balances at 31 August 2026 were allocated-as follows: - ;

. K £

John Taylor High School * S $ oo © 2,064,568 1,818,147
Kingsmead School o : T ) : ". 615,940 682,180
Thomas Russell Infants School = : : - 145,832 169,541
Yoxall St Peters School : - ‘ 68,124 66,043 -
Mosley Academy 231,019 180,230
Rykneld-Primary School : : . . . 47,198 (14,472)
Shobnall Priméry School . - T ’ 166,946 1'53,853
Winshill Village Primary School - . .. 257,334 279,937 .
John Taylor Free School _ ’ 499,317 121,683
Needwood Primary School ’ . 108,899 102,542
All Saints Primary School 96,466 104,075
Walton on Trent School 162,386 153,184
Church Gresley Infant and Nursery School . 193,087 . <
Paulet High School* : 791,159 -
Central Services 607,105 476,896
Total before fixed asset funds and pensioh reserve ' ) . 6,045,380 4,293,839

" Restricted fixed asset fund -'102,871,274 76,851,529
Pension reserve . : . (13,744,000) - (9,976,000)

- ,State_ni.e'nt ofvfundjs,_ ('ébiititi‘ued) o o :." T AU _f

- .-2020

2019

Total ' ' 95,172,654

71,169,368

*Included within the funds of Paulet High School is a balance of £338,778 which relates to a specific

restricted maintenance sinking fund in relation to sports facilties.
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‘ and : .
educational " - Other - Other costs : I
stipport support Educational” -excluding . Total = - Total -
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation - 2020 - - 2019
£ £ £ £ £
John Taylor High . : : ’

School - 5,926,454 1,076,560 1,161,245 741,255 8,905,514 8,897,491
Kingsmead C ’ » o

School : 4,099,062 754,503 401,464 - 807,599 6,062,628 - 5,632,335
Thomas Russell . ‘

Infants School 576,013 105,168 18,239 154,954 854,374 835,890
Yoxall St Peters . .

School 424,746 84,867 49,126 155,557 714,296 665,642
Mosley Academy 522,282 .108,772 33,336 160,402 824,792 752,033
Rykneld Primary

School 1,727,665 258,305 35,186 358,835 2,379,991 2,073,314
Shobnall Primary - - o

School : 676,518 179,024 - 40,784 205,379 - 1,101,705- 1,085,095
Winshill Village o : o ; :

Primary School 773,924 203,144 19,251 . 170,886 1,167,205 1,102,821
John Taylor Free ) ’ ' ’

School . 1,488,833 386,759 . 137,399 471,510 2,484,501 1,350,227
Needwood

Primary School 304,128 62,023 19,612 109,214 494 977 334,038

(All Saints ’ : :

Primary School 352,349 58,948 21,265 116,605 549,167 380,636
Walton on Trent . . .

School © 419,244 107,024 58,546 157,807 742,621 414,202
Church Gresley -

- Infant and » . .

Nursery School 992,074 276,964 © 30,669 192,546 1,492,253 -
Paulet High . S -

School* 1,936,566 . 331,361 152,555 204,803 2625285 ° -
Central Services 320,134 1,552,318 283,185 350,310 2,505,947 1,943,854

" Academy Trust 20,539,992 - 5545740  2461,862 4,357,662 32,905,256 25,467,578

Statementjdf funds (continued)

- Tété.l cost analysis By écadté'my-_'

Expéndftuije 'in'é'ufr'éd:by' éécﬁ_ ai:a.d_el.'ny “du'.ririg.ihé year W_ésié_s fol"lo,v&s: "

Teaching .
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Statement of funds (contlnued)

- .': Comparatlve |nformat|on m respect of the precedlng year is as follows:;

General Funds

Restricted-general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Start Up Grants
Pupil Premium
Other grants
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Assets donated on conversion
Capital expenditure from GAG

Total Restricted funds

Total funds

’ Balance at- ) G
. -1 T . Balance at ‘-
'September e o " Gains/ . 31 August-
: © 2018 " Income Expenditure (Losses). T 2019
£ £ Y 3 £
2451437 1,168,997 ~ (467,406) - 3,153,028
643,921 19,863,905 (19,367,015) - 1,140,811

- 230,000 (230,000) - -

- " 873,756 (873,756) - -

- 3,463,319 (3,463,319) . -
(6,448,000) - (262,000)  (818,000) (2,448,000) (9,976,000)
(5.804.079) 24,168,980 (24,752,000) (2,448,000) (8,835,189)
" 1,296,707 947,649  (684,418) - 1,559,938
45,665,375 30,953,388  (1,438,107) - 75,179,656

167,975 (56,040) - 111,935
47,130,057 31,901,037 (2,179,565) - 76,851,529
41,325,978 56,070,017 (26,931,655) (2,448,000) 68,016,340
43,777,415 57,239,014 (27,399,061) (2,448,000) 71,169,368
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-1'8‘._ w "_Analysisjdf net,é‘sséts_‘-i)é't.y\ié'én funds .

-Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year .
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total -

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year .
‘Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total

Restncted

76,851,529

T Unrestricted Restric{ed‘ fixed asset A.'-.Tovta'l o
" -funds funds funds - funds
2020 . - 2020 2020 2020
R A £ ' . £
. - - 101,562,348 101,562,348 -
3,647,202 5,283,382 1,308,926 10,239,510
- (2,885,204) - - (2,885,204)
- (13,744,000) - (13,744,000)
3,647,202 (11,345,822) 102,871,274 95,172,654

Restricted

Unrestricted - Restricted fixed asset Total
funds - funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£ £ £ £
- - 76,377,818 76,377,818
3,153,028 3,318,246 473,711 6,944,985
- (2,177,435) - (2,177,435)

- (9,976,000) - (9,976,000)

3,153,028  (8,835,189)

71,169,368
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Net iﬁéomé for.the ‘;;_eri_od (a‘s"pe'r- stat.e‘mv_er'\'t of~ﬂnan-qial activit'ies)

Adjustments for:

" Depreciation charges
Ipveétment income ‘
(Increase)ldecreasé in debtors
Increase in creditors ‘
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

- Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost )
Defined benefit pension scheme effect of business combinations
Net assets transferred on conversion

Net cash provided by operatihg activities

"..-* 'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS _—
.. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 - : ST
a 19, . Rgcjdnciliation’:_Qf:hé'tz_ini':gme to-nef cash ﬂo@_{llb:m'_:oﬁgrating:aétivities"' - :
o o 702000 2019

25,112,286 29,839,953

2,238,298
(43,003)
(471,221)
707,769
(1,299,806)
1,035,000
207,000
1,417,000

1,931,483
(17,484)

113,045
448,638
(947,649)

. 624,000 -
194,000

262,000

(28,133,619) (31,257,813)

769,704

1,190,173
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JOHN TAYLOR MAT B _ SR _ R
(A company limited by guarantee) ' e T I S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS

o 20 Cash-flows from iﬁyé&iih_g"égtivities_ o e e T TR

2020: - 2019

.—"- 4 -'Investment mcome - - L ’ T L : 43,003 17,484,
o Purchase of tangible-fi fixed: assets ‘ S e T (252:828) (225, 856)
- Capital grants from Dfe _G[oup ’ o L ’ © 1,299,806, - 947 649

Cash transferred on conversion from local authority - S - 963,619 304,425

Net cash provided by investing activities ' - 2053600 1,043,702

21.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
£ £
Cash in hand 9171796 6,348,492

22. Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 Conversion
September from local - At
2019 Cash flows authority August 2020
. . A . £ . £ £ £
- Cash at bank and in hand 6,348,492 1,859,685 963,619 9,171,796
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" 23,

'Taylor MAT from Derbyshlre County Councll for £NIL consuderatlon

AConversron to an Academy Trust ST e o h A

On 1 September 2019 Church Gresley Infant and Nursery School converted to Academy Trust statusl -
under the Academles ‘Act 2010 and all the' operations and assets and. Ilabllmes Wwere’ transferred to John -

The transfer ‘has been accounted for. as a cémbination that is in substance a gift. The assets and

- liabilities "transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet' under the

approprlate heading with a corresponding net ‘amount recognised as a net gain_in the statement of

" - financial activities as- Income’ from Donattons and Capital Grants - transfer from local "authority on

conversion.

‘The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an

analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities.

. ) Restricted :

Unrestricted ~Restricted fixed asset © Total

. funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Leasehold land and buildings - - 5,910,000 5,910,000

Cash - representing budget surplus on

LA funds 4 v 207,088 - A - 207,089
Cash - representing budget surplus on :

other school funds - 50,984 4,229 55,213

LGPS pension deficit - (422,000) = (422,000)

207,089 (371,016) 5,914,229 5,750,302
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' "'23‘.,

Conversuon to an Academy Trust (contlnued) h L ,' ,'-‘ o L

On 1 February 2020 Paulet Hrgh School converted to Academy Trust status under the Academ|es Act )
2010-and. all ‘the operatlons and assefs-and I|ab|I|t|es were transferred to John Taylor MAT from_ o
Staffordshlre County Councnt for £NIL conscderatlon ; -

The transfer has been accounted for as a com’olnatlon that is in substance a glft ‘The assets and -

liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
financial activities as lncome from -Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on
conversion.

The followmg table sets out the fair values of the ndentlfable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities.

- Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset “Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Leasehold land and buildings - - 21,260,000 21,260,000
Cash - representing budget surplus an )

LA funds . _ 262,662 - - 262,662

Cash - representing budget surplus on
other school funds - 353,098 85,557 438,655

LGPS pension deficit - . (995,000) - (995,000)

262,662 (641,902) 21,345,557 20,966,317
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- " 'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
*_ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST. 2020

. Pensuon commltments Lo . '_'__‘-‘f' S TR e s

'-The Academy Trusts employees belong to two pnnc1pa| pensnon schemes the Teachers Pensnon
Scheme England ‘and Wales (TPS) for academlc and-related staff; and the Locat Government Pension
Scheme: (LGPS) for non- teaching staff, whuch is managed by Staffordshlre County Councnl Both are’
‘multi- employer deﬁned benef't schemes. L -

The latest actuanal valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of-the LGPS 31
March 2017. -

Contrlbutlons amountlng to £516 464 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019 £338 328)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers. in academles

- All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer Retlrement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at

- 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2018.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

e~ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (mcludlng a 0.08% administration
levy) :
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

° the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CP!, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnirigs growth is 4.45%. :

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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24,

Pensron commltments (contmued)

) - The employers pensron costs pald to TPS m the year amounted to £3 055 362 (2019 £1 699 954)
- A copy of the valuatlon report and suppomng documentatlon i ori the Teachers Pensnons web5|te

" Under the deﬁnltlons set out in FRS 102 the TPS is an unfunded multi- employer pension scheme The

Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution®

scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the |nforrnat|on available on the scheme.

Local Government Pensron Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined beneﬁt pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £1,441,000 (2019
- £1,081,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,156,000 (2019 - £863,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £285,000 (2019 - £218,000). The agreed contrlbutlon rates for future years are

‘24 2% for employers and 5. 5% to 12.5% for.employees. ’

Parllament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020 2019

i ' % %

Rate of increase in salaries 2.60-3.00 2.70-2.80
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.20-2.30 2,30

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 1.80-1.90

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020 2019
Years Years
Reliring today
Males _ . 212-216 211-219
Females 23.6-23.7 23.5-244
Retiring in 20 years .
Males ’ T 221-226 222-239

Females . 25.0-25.1 24.8-26.5
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. 24. Pension éhqr_'r‘iﬁit.mé_nts (c_ont?riued)" . e

"' . Sensitivity a'na'iyisis.j

A - 2020°
Discountrate-0.5% - . - - T 73452000 2,424,000
Salary increas'e.r?_te +0.5% ) - ) i : 423,000 359,000
- Pension increase rate + 0.5% o o _ 2,964,000 - 2,014,000
The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:
2020 2019
) _ ) £ £
Equities . ' . o 9,398,480 - 6,861,000
Corporate bonds - : L : 2,811,200 2,228,000
Property - 1,112,880 808,000
Other assets ' ’ 585,440 212,000
Total market value of assets . 13,908,000 10,109,000
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:
2020 2019
£ £
Current service cost ) ] (2,191,000) (1,380,000)
Past service cost » - (107,000)
Interest income ‘ ' 227,000 250,000
Interest cost (434,000) (444,000)
Total amount recognised in the statement of financial activities (2,398,000) (1 ,681 ,000)
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: 24, Pensaon commltments (contlnued)

B . Changes in lhe present value of the defned beneﬁt obllgatlons were as follows

At 1 September )

Obligations acquired on conversion
" “Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial losses

Benefits paid

Past service costs

At 31 August

2019

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

At 1 September
Assets acquired on conversion
Interest income

. Actuarial (losses)/gains
Employer contributions

- Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August

T 2020}
' 20,085,000 14,674,000 -
4,036,000 610,000

2,191,000 1,380,000

434,000 444,000

285,000 218,000

802,000 2,783,000

(181,000)  (131,000)

- 107,000 -

27,652,000 20,085,000

2020 2019

£ £

10,109,000 8,226,000

2,619,000 348,000

227,000 250,000

(307.000) 335,000

1,156,000 863,000

285,000 218,000

(181,000)  (131,000)

13,908,000

10,109,000
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25,

. .At 31 August 2020 the Academy Trust had commltments to make future mlnlmum lease payments under ’
©non: cancellable operatmg Ieases as follows T . - .

26.

27.

28,

Operatmgleasecommltments ’ TR s N " Coe

Lo ST S 2020 A_.-zo19 -
'Amounts payable:: L o ’ '
~ Within 1 year -: . - _— S 63,942 71,614
. Between 1 and 5 years ‘ - o . - 91,860 120,768
“In over 5 years ’ . ) o - : 28
155,802 192,410

Members' liability .

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have -an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of
all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulatlons and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.

Expenditure related party transactions

AMG [T Solutions - an entity which is connected to a key management personnel of the entity. Total
expenditure on IT services for the year was £23,040 (2019 - £1 ,601). There is no year end creditor (2019
- £Nit). .

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the year it
received £44,493 (2019 - £38,896) and disbursed £40,182 (2019 - £38,250) from the fund. An amount of
£5,315 (2019 - £646) is included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable to the
ESFA.

The Academy Trust also distributes SCITT bursary funds as an agent for the DfE. In the year it received
£561,225 (2019 - £540,000) and disbursed £560,900 (2013 - £540,000) from the fund. An amount of £Nil

- (2019 - £Nil) is included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable to the DfE.
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N 29. -;]'Teéching schddl:tfa‘ding accou?\i

o £ N £

" Income - i

. Directincome - - .

- NCTL iricome S ' 129,480 - 348,484
 Otherincome _ : N :
Self generated income . . 1,074,866 . 1,018,171
Total income ’ 1,204,346
Expenditure
Direct expenditure )

Direct staff costs , ; 237,449 270,910
Other direct costs ) ' 765,457 ] 1,119,548
Total expenditure 1,002,906
Surplus/(deficit) from all sources 201,440.

Teaching school balances at 1 September 2019 229,052
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2020 430,492

- ~'2020 -

.. 2020

. 2018

. 2019

-1,366,655

1,390,458

(23,803)
252,855

229,052
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